
 

January 21, 2020~3:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 101 

OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
Council Chambers 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA. 95965 

 

January 21, 2020 
REGULAR MEETING 

CLOSED SESSION 3:30 PM 
OPEN SESSION 5:30 PM 

AGENDA 

 

 
REQUESTS TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 

If you would like to address the Council at this meeting, you are requested to complete the blue 
speaker request form (located on the wall by the agendas) and hand it to the City Clerk, who is 
seated on the right of the Council Chamber.  The form assists the Clerk with minute taking and 
assists the Mayor or presiding chair in conducting an orderly meeting. Providing personal 
information on the form is voluntary.  For scheduled agenda items, please submit the form prior 
to the conclusion of the staff presentation for that item.  Council has established time limitations of 
two (2) minutes per speaker on all items and an overall time limit of thirty minutes for non-agenda items. 
If more than 10 speaker cards are submitted for non-agenda items, the time limitation would be reduced 
to one and a half minutes per speaker. If more than 15 speaker cards are submitted for non-agenda 
items, the first 15 speakers will be randomly selected to speak at the beginning of the meeting, with the 
remaining speakers given an opportunity at the end. (California Government Code §54954.3(b)). 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, the Council is prohibited from taking action except for a 
brief response from the Council or staff to statements or questions relating to a non-agenda item. 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL  

Council Members: David Pittman, Eric Smith, Linda Draper, Art Hatley, Janet Goodson, Vice Mayor 

Scott Thomson, Mayor Chuck Reynolds  

CLOSED SESSION 

The Council will hold a Closed Session on the following: 

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b), the Council will meet with the City 
Administrator and the Personnel Officer to consider the employment related to the following 
positions:  Assistant Community Development Director.  

2. Pursuant to      Government Code Section 54957(b), the Council will meet with the City      
Administrator, Personnel Officer, and City Attorney to consider the      employment related to the 
following position: Assistant City      Administrator. 

3. Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(2), the Council will meet with the City 
Administrator and City Attorney regarding potential exposure to litigation – two cases. 

4. Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.6, the Council will meet with Labor Negotiators 
and City Attorney to discuss labor negotiations for the following represented groups: Oroville 
Firefighters’ Association, Oroville Police Officers Association (Sworn and Non-Sworn), Oroville 
Public Safety Mid-Managers Association, Oroville Management and Confidential Association, 
and Oroville City Employees Association. 

1



 

January 21, 2020~3:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 101 

OPEN SESSION  

1. Announcement from Closed Session 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Adoption of Agenda 
 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – HEARING OF NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

This is the time to address the Council about any item not listed on the agenda. If you wish to address 
the Council on an item listed on the agenda, please follow the directions listed above. 

CONSENT CALENDAR  

Consent calendar items 1 - 6 are adopted in one action by the Council. Items that are removed will be 
discussed and voted on immediately after adoption of consent calendar items. 

1. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES  

The Council may approve the minutes of the January 7, 2020 Council Meeting 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the Minutes of the January 7, 2020 City Council Meeting 

2. REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT 3274-2 – A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE 
BIRDCAGE THEATRE  

The City Council may approve a recommendation from the Arts Commission to extend 
Agreement 3274-2 to May 31, 2020.  

RECOMMENDATION 

APPROVE the Arts Commission recommendation; and 

ADOPT Resolution No. 8830 - A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AMENDED GRANT 
AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE OROVILLE ARTS & DOWNTOWN BEAUTIFICATION 
PROJECTS (Agreement 3274-2) 

3. FEE WAIVER FOR FLAG POLE AND SHADE STRUCTURE FOR THE VETERANS 
MEMORIAL FOR ALL OF BUTTE COUNTY  

The Council will consider a fee waiver request in the amount of $1,587.91 for the installation of 
a shade structure and a flag pole for the Veterans Memorial for all of Butte County located at 
2310 Montgomery Street. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends wavier of all permit and plan check fees for this project.  

 

2



 

January 21, 2020~3:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 101 

4. ESTABLISH BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION FOR SB2 PLANNING GRANT TO PROMOTE 

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT IN OROVILLE 

Establish Budget and appropriation for SB2 Planning Grant to promote housing development in 

Oroville 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve budget and appropriation for implementation of the awarded SB2 Planning Grant. 

5. AMENDMENT OF ORIGINAL AGREEMENT TO EXTEND THE TERM OF THE AGREEMENT 
WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 

The Council may consider an Amendment to the Agreement with the California Department of 
Parks and Recreation, for extra patrols in the State Parks Recreation area in and around Oroville, 
extending the terms through January 31, 2021.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt Resolution No. 8831 – A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND 
RECREATION, EXTENDING THE TERM THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2021. 

6. PURCHASE OF A STUMPEX STUMP GRINDER 

The Council may consider authorizing staff to purchase a Stumpex Stump Grinder.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Authorize staff to purchase the Stumpex Stump Grinder 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3



 

January 21, 2020~3:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 101 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

The Public Hearing Procedure is as follows: 

- Mayor or Chairperson opens the public hearing. 

- Staff presents and answers questions from Council 

- The hearing is opened for public comment limited to two (2) minutes per speaker. In the 

event of more than ten (10) speakers, time will be limited to one and a half (1.5) minutes. 

Under Government Code 54954.3, the time for each presentation may be limited.  

- Speakers are requested to provide a speaker card to the City Clerk 

- Public comment session is closed 

- Council debate and action 

7. PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE INPUT REGARDING TRANSITION TO BY-DISTRICT 
ELECTIONS FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS   

The Council will hold a public hearing to receive a presentation from Q2 Data & Research LLC 
and to receive input from the public regarding the transition to a by-district election process.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Open a public hearing to receive a presentation from Q2 Data & Research LLC and to receive 
input from the public 

8. SECOND READING OF A DRAFT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE AMENDING 
SECTIONS 17.04.060 AND 5.28.010 AND ADDING SECTIONS 5.28.095, 5.28.130 AND 
5.28.140 OF THE OROVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING PROHIBITING THE SALE OF 
FLAVORED TOBACCO 

The Council will hold a public hearing to consider approving the second reading of an ordinance 
to prohibit the sale of flavored tobacco within the City limits. Input will be considered from the 
Planning Commission and the public on both sides of the issue. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt Ordinance 1841 -- AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE AMENDING 
SECTIONS 17.04.060 AND 5.28.010 AND ADDING SECTIONS 5.28.095, 5.28.130 AND 
5.28.140 OF THE OROVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING PROHIBITING THE SALE OF 
FLAVORED TOBACCO. 

REGULAR BUSINESS  

9. FISCAL YEAR UPDATE 

The Council will hear an update of Council accomplishments and financial update for first half of 
fiscal year 2019/2020 

RECOMMENDATION 

Provide staff direction as to necessary staffing changes and return to Council with any 
necessary budget adjustments  

4



 

January 21, 2020~3:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 5 of 101 

REPORTS / DISCUSSIONS / CORRESPONDENCE 

1.   Council Announcements and Reports 

2.   Future Agenda Items 

3.   Administration Reports 

4.   Correspondence 

i. Letter of Resignation - Parks Commissioner Scott Lawrence  

ii. FERC - Oroville Spillway Recovery and Forbestown Diversion Dam Letters 

iii. Butte County Planning Commission Public Hearing Notice  

ADJOURN THE MEETING 

 

 
 
Accommodating Those Individuals with Special Needs – In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, the City of Oroville encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 
meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 538-2535, well in advance of the regular meeting you 
wish to attend, so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. Documents distributed 
for public session items, less than 72 hours prior to meeting, are available for public inspection at City 
Hall, 1735 Montgomery Street, Oroville, California. 
 
Recordings - All meetings are recorded and broadcast live on cityoforoville.org and YouTube. 
  

5





 

January 07, 2020~4:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 5 

OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
Council Chambers 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA. 95965 

 

January 07, 2020 
MINUTES 

 

This agenda was posted on January 3, 2020 at 3pm. This meeting was recorded and can be viewed at 
cityoforoville.org.  
 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL  

Mayor Reynolds called the meeting to order at 4:30pm.  

PRESENT:  Council Members: David Pittman, Eric Smith, Linda Draper, Art Hatley, Janet Goodson, 

Vice Mayor Scott Thomson, Mayor Chuck Reynolds  

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: City Administrator Bill LaGrone, Assistant City Administrator Ruth Wright, Assistant City 

Administrator Joe Deal, Assistant City Clerk Jackie Glover, Project Manager Tom Lando, 

City Attorney Scott Huber, Principle Planner Wes Ervin, Management Analyst III Amy 

Bergstrand, City Treasurer Karolyn Fairbanks  

CLOSED SESSION 

The Council Convened to closed session at 4:35pm 

The Council Reconvened at 4:36pm.  

The City Attorney announced: The following item came to the attention of the City staff subsequent to 
the posting of the agenda for this January 7, 2020 meeting. Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54954.2, staff is requesting the Council take action to add the following item to the agenda.  

Motion by Mayor Reynolds and second by Council Member Draper to Amend the Closed Session 
Agenda to add Item No.3 as follows: Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b), the council will 
meet with the City Administrator, Personnel Officer, and the City Attorney to consider the employment 
related to the following position: Assistant City Administrator. Motion Passed.  

AYES:  Council Member Hatley, Pittman, Goodson, Smith, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson and 
Mayor Reynolds  

NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
The Council held a Closed Session on the following: 

1. Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(2), the Council will meet with the City 
Administrator and City Attorney regarding potential exposure to litigation – two cases. 

2. Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.6, the Council will meet with Labor Negotiators 
and City Attorney to discuss labor negotiations for the following represented groups: Oroville 
Firefighters’ Association, Oroville Police Officers Association (Sworn and Non-Sworn), Oroville 

6

Item 1.



 

January 07, 2020~4:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 5 

Public Safety Mid-Managers Association, Oroville Management and Confidential Association, 
and Oroville City Employees Association. 

3.   Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b), the council will meet with the City 
Administrator, Personnel Officer, and the City Attorney to consider the employment related to 
the following position: Assistant City Administrator. Motion Passed. 

OPEN SESSION  

The Council reconvened from closed session at 5pm.  

1. Announcement from Closed Session – Mayor Reynolds announced that direction was given; no 
action was taken.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Mayor Reynolds  
 

3. Adoption of Agenda – Motion by Council Member Goodson and second by Council Member 
Draper to adopt the agenda. Motion passed.  

AYES:  Council Member Hatley, Pittman, Goodson, Smith, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson and 
Mayor Reynolds  

NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 

 

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 

1. The Council Received a presentation from AMG & Associates regarding the Riverbend Family 
Apartments  

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – HEARING OF NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

The following individuals spoke on non-agenda items:  

 Cheri Bunker  Celia Hirschman  The Camera Man 

The Following individuals spoke on agenda items:  

 Bobby O’Reiley – Item 2, 5, 7 

 DeAnne Blankenship – Item 5 

 Susan Sears – Item 5 

 Mike Britton – Item 5 

 Joshua Edwards – Item 5 

 Chloe Graham – Item 5 

 Joni Meyer – Item 5 

 Bruce Baldwin – Item 5 

 Katie Moose – Item 5 

 Danette York – Item 5 

 Kavinder Chatkara – Item 5 

 Ashok – Item 5 

 Panjak Verma (Tony) – Item 5 

 Ellen Michels – Item 5  

 Shelly Brantley – Item 5 

 Celia Hirschman – Item 5 

 The Cameraman – Item 5 & 7 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR  

Motion by Council Member Goodson and second by Council Member draper to approve the consent 
calendar with and amendment to item number two’s resolution to change the amount requested amount 
to $20,000,000. Motion passed.  

7

Item 1.



 

January 07, 2020~4:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 5 

AYES:  Council Member Hatley, Pittman, Goodson, Smith, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson and 
Mayor Reynolds  

NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 
 

1. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES  

The Council approved the minutes of December 3, 2019 and December 17, 2019.  

2. AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES GRANT APPLICATION  

The Council Adopted Resolution No. 8827- A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY 
COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION FOR THE AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES (AHSC) PROGRAM 

3. CONSIDER AND APPROVE A JOB DESCRIPTIONS FOR COLLECTION SYSTEM 

OPERATORS I, II AND LEAD FOR THE SEWER DIVISION 

The City Council approved the new job descriptions for Collection System Operator I, II and 

Lead. 

4. CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AMENDED AND RESTATED MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF OROVILLE AND THE OROVILLE CITY 
EMPLOYEE’S ASSOCIATION AND AUTHORIZATION TO GRANT STEP H TO ONE 
EMPLOYEE 

The Council Adopt Resolution No. 8829 - A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AMENDED AND RESTATED 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF OROVILLE AND THE 
OROVILLE CITY EMPLOYEE’S ASSOCIATION – (Agreement No. 1432-15); and  

Approved and authorized staff to move one employee to Step H of the current salary range. 

REGULAR BUSINESS  

5. FIRST READING OF A DRAFT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE AMENDING 
SECTIONS 17.04.060 AND 5.28.010 AND ADDING SECTIONS 5.28.095, 5.28.130 AND 
5.28.140 OF THE OROVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING PROHIBITING THE SALE OF 
FLAVORED TOBACCO 

The Council considered approving the first reading of an ordinance to prohibit the sale of 
flavored tobacco within the City limits. 

Motion by Council Member Draper and second by Council Member Goodson to approve first 
reading of ordinance as is, which prohibits the sale of all flavored tobacco products within the 
City limits. Motion passed.  

AYES:  Council Member Hatley, Pittman, Goodson, Smith, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson and 
Mayor Reynolds  

NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 
 
 
 

8

Item 1.



 

January 07, 2020~4:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 5 

6. ADOPTION OF BUTTE COUNTY LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

The Council considered adopting the Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

Motion by Council Member Hatley and second by Council Member Pittman to adopt the the 
Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. Motion passed.  

AYES:  Council Member Hatley, Pittman, Goodson, Smith, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson and 
Mayor Reynolds  

NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 
 

7. ADOPTION OF FORMAL MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2020 

The Council considered the formal meeting schedule for 2020. The Council adjusted the 
meeting times to 5:00pm for closed session and 5:30pm for open session.  

Motion by Council Member Goodson and Second by Council Member Draper to approve the 
City’s formal meeting schedule for 2020 with changing the Council meeting times to 5:00pm for 
closed session and 5:30pm for open session. Motion passed.  

AYES:  Council Member Hatley, Pittman, Goodson, Smith, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson and 
Mayor Reynolds  

NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: None 
 

REPORTS / DISCUSSIONS / CORRESPONDENCE 

1. Council Announcements and Reports 
a. Draper – Mentioned that on December 30th Ace Gravison passed away, she 

attended the funeral on Saturday, he was a special person and will be missed in the 
community.  

b. Goodson – Said Happy New Year to everyone and stated she appreciates working 
with everyone and looks forward to a great new year, Announced the Martin Luther 
King Pancake Breakfast on January 20, 2020 from 8-10am at the Southside 
Community Center.  

c. Attended the City Christmas Party; his son surprised him with a visit; he asked 
everyone to keep the military in their prayers.  

2. Future Agenda Items –  
a. Creation of a policy to address issues citizens/council bring up regarding things that 

are broken or a public safety issue.  

3.   Administration Reports 

a. Assistant City Administrator Ruth Wright – Annual Audit is now on the website  
b. Project Manager Tom Lando – Tremendous interest in development in Oroville right 

now.  
c. City Administrator Bill LaGrone – Spoke about having a great family Christmas and 

stated he is looking forward to 2020.  
d. Attorney Scott Huber – Told everyone Happy New Year and stated he appreciated 

being in Oroville.  
e. Principle Planner – Planning has received an application for a 100 room hotel 

behind Starbucks and Panda express; Received a permit for a gas station at corner 

9

Item 1.



 

January 07, 2020~4:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 5 

of Feather River and Oro Dam; January 14 at 6pm at the African American Family 
Culture Center there will be a Community Meeting regarding South Oroville. 

f. Assistant City Administrator Joe Deal – Thanked Council for his ability to serve and 
stated he looks forward to the coming year.  

4.   Correspondence 

i. Letter from Comcast regarding price changes 

ADJOURN THE MEETING 

Mayor Reynolds adjourned the meeting at 7pm. 

APPROVED:       ATTESTED: 
 
 
 
_________________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Mayor Chuck Reynolds     Assistant City Clerk Jackie Glover 

10

Item 1.





Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: MAYOR REYNOLDS AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: JACKIE GLOVER, ASSISTANT CITY CLERK 

RE: REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF AGREEMENT 3274-2 – A GRANT 
AGREEMENT WITH THE BIRDCAGE THEATRE  

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2020 

SUMMARY 

The City Council may approve a recommendation from the Arts Commission to extend 
Agreement 3274-2 to May 31, 2020.  

DISCUSSION 

In March 2019 the City Council approved a grant through the Oroville Arts and Downtown 
Beautification 2019 NOFA to award the Birdcage Theatre $8500 to create a Mural and update 
their Marquee on the outside of their building.  

On December 2, 2019 the Oroville Arts Commission received a letter requesting an extension 
of their agreement to May 2020. The Oroville Arts Commission then voted to recommend to 
Council the approval of an extension of the Agreement with the Birdcage Theatre.  

Birdcage Theatre Requested the extension due to delays in getting supplies and weather. If 
Birdcage is given an extension the project will be complete by May 31, 2020.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

RECOMMENDATION 

APPROVE the Arts Commission recommendation; and 

ADOPT Resolution No. 8830 - A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AMENDED GRANT 
AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE OROVILLE ARTS & DOWNTOWN BEAUTIFICATION 
PROJECTS (Agreement 3274-2) 
 

11

Item 2.



Page 2 

ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution No. 8830 
Amendment to 3274-2 
Original Agreement 

 
 

 

12

Item 2.



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 
 

CITY OF OROVILLE 

RESOLUTION NO. 8830 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING 

THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AMENDED GRANT AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE 

OROVILLE ARTS & DOWNTOWN BEAUTIFICATION PROJECTS 

 

(Agreement No. 3274-2) 

 

 BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Oroville City Council as follows: 
 

1. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute an Amended Grant 
Agreement with the Birdcage Theatre to extend the expiration of the 
agreement to May 31, 2020. 

 
2. The City Clerk shall attest to the adoption of this Resolution. 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Oroville City Council at a regular meeting on 
January 21, 2020 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
  

 
_____________________________ 

       Chuck Reynolds, Vice Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  _____________________________ 
Scott E. Huber, City Attorney   Jackie Glover, Assistant City Clerk 

13

Item 2.



 

 
Agreement 3274-2   

AMENDMENT TO THE GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE BIRDCAGE THEATRE 

THROUGH THE OROVILLE ARTS AND DOWNTOWN BEAUTIFICATION PROJECTS 

GRANT 

 

(Agreement No. 3274-2) 
 

 This Amendment, dated January 21, 2020, is to the Grant Agreement with the 
Birdcage Theatre through the Oroville Arts and Downtown Beautification Projects Grant.   

 
In consideration of the terms and conditions herein, the City and Birdcage Theatre 

agree that the amendment to the agreement is effective January 21, 2020, and shall be 
amended as follows: 

 

1. SECTION 1.04 Time of Commencement and Completion - Amend sections 1.04 
(a) and 1.04 (b) to change January 30, 2020 to May 31, 2020. 
 

2. All other provisions within Agreement No. 3274-2 shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
This Amendment is approved by the City Council of the City of Oroville at a regular meeting 
held on January 21, 2020. 
 
CITY OF OROVILLE                BIRDCAGE THEATRE 
 
 
By:                                                           By:        
      Chuck Reynolds, Mayor         Jennifer Beers, Vice President 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:         
     Scott E. Huber, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



20

Item 2.



21

Item 2.



22

Item 2.



23

Item 2.



24

Item 2.



25

Item 2.



26

Item 2.



27

Item 2.



28

Item 2.



29

Item 2.



30

Item 2.



31

Item 2.



32

Item 2.



33

Item 2.



34

Item 2.



35

Item 2.



36

Item 2.



37

Item 2.



38

Item 2.



39

Item 2.



40

Item 2.



41

Item 2.



42

Item 2.



43

Item 2.



44

Item 2.



45

Item 2.



46

Item 2.



47

Item 2.



48

Item 2.



49

Item 2.



50

Item 2.



Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: MAYOR REYNOLDS AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: BILL LAGRONE, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

RE: FEE WAIVER FOR FLAG POLE AND SHADE STRUCTURE FOR 
THE VETERANS MEMORIAL FOR ALL OF BUTTE COUNTY  

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2020 

SUMMARY 

The Council will consider a fee waiver request in the amount of $1,587.91 for the 
installation of a shade structure and a flag pole for the Veterans Memorial for all of 
Butte County located at 2310 Montgomery Street. 
 
DISCUSSION 

An adequate amount of funds have been raised to construct the next phase of the 
Veterans Memorial for all of Butte County. The plans have been submitted and 
approved. The project is ready to proceed. The City is in the process of issuing the 
necessary permits. The advocates along for the project along with Butte County are 
requesting the fees for this project be waived.   
 
This is a community volunteer driven project to help celebrate and remember those who 
have sacrificed for our freedom. A fee waiver is warranted and recommended for this 
project.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

The City will not receive permit fees in the amount of $1,587.91. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends wavier of all permit and plan check fees for this project.  
 

 

51

Item 3.





Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: LEO DEPAOLA, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 

RE: ESTABLISH BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION FOR SB2 PLANNING 
GRANT TO PROMOTE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT IN OROVILLE 

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2020 

SUMMARY 

Establish Budget and appropriation for SB2 Planning Grant to promote housing development 
in Oroville 

DISCUSSION 

On September 3, 2019 the City Council approved an application to the Department of 
Housing and Community Development for $160,000 to streamline housing approvals and 
accelerate housing production.  The Council also directed staff to implement the grant if 
awarded.  The grant has been awarded and is ready to execute.   

This action establishes the budget and appropriation for the grant.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve budget and appropriation for implementation of the awarded SB2 Planning Grant. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Grant 19-PGP-13408 Standard Agreement and Instructions 
 

52

Item 4.



53

Item 4.



54

Item 4.



55

Item 4.



56

Item 4.



57

Item 4.



58

Item 4.



59

Item 4.



60

Item 4.



61

Item 4.



62

Item 4.



63

Item 4.



64

Item 4.



65

Item 4.



66

Item 4.



67

Item 4.



68

Item 4.



69

Item 4.



70

Item 4.





Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 
TO: MAYOR REYNOLDS AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: JOE DEAL, PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR 

RE: AMENDMENT OF ORIGINAL AGREEMENT TO EXTEND THE TERM OF 
THE AGREEMENT WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PARKS 
AND RECREATION 

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2020 

SUMMARY 

The Council may consider an Amendment to the Agreement with the California Department of 
Parks and Recreation, for extra patrols in the State Parks Recreation area in and around 
Oroville, extending the terms through January 31, 2021.  
 

DISCUSSION 

The Oroville Police Department (OPD) has been assisting the local California State Parks 
Department with extra duty patrols in and around the State Parks Recreation areas. This 
assistance began during the spillway incident and there is a need for these patrols to continue 
as construction is still on-going in the area.  For the necessary construction and repairs to be 
completed it is essential that on lookers be kept out of the area. Work cannot be interrupted on 
a regular basis due to an individual satisfying their personal curiosity.  
 
State Parks and Oroville Police share a common area as the trail system passes through the 
City. This type of partnership will strength our relationship and expand our understanding of 
policing of a trail system. Staff believes this is an excellent opportunity to learn and continue to 
partner with our neighboring agency.  
 
This Agreement is 100% funded by State Parks. State Parks not only has provided funding for 
the Officers salary and benefits but has also provided funding to cover the overhead associated 
with each Officer.  This Agreement is funded on an hour for hour basis, in an amount not to 
exceed $200,000. 
 

The original terms of the Agreement are stated as: 
 

“Provide extra patrols in the Lake Oroville Sector due to the Spillway emergency, 
Contractor agrees to provide all labor, material, tools, equipment and incidentals 
necessary to provide Law Enforcement Services.”  
 

71

Item 5.



Page 2 

NEW TERM: Term of Agreement Extended from 05/01/2018 through 01/31/2021 
 

There are no other changes to this Agreement. 
 

Currently, the Oroville Police Department (OPD) has expended $75,961.35 in overtime 
expense related to this Agreement. OPD has billed the Department of Parks and Recreation 
$132,449.96.  
 
This Agreement was signed and submitted for approval to the State, during the first week of 
January. The only way the State would consider the contract was to have a signature from the 
vendor (Oroville).  
 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The Agreement will provide additional funding to the General Fund. The amount will be based 
upon the total number of hours worked by OPD Officers.   
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt Resolution No. 8831 – A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND 
RECREATION, EXTENDING THE TERM THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2021. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 

A - Resolution No. 8831 
B – Standard Agreement Amendment 
 

 

72

Item 5.



 

CITY OF OROVILLE 
RESOLUTION NO. 8831 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF PARKS 
AND RECREATION, EXTENDING THE TERM THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2021 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oroville City Council as follows:   
 

 
1. The Director of Public Safety is authorized and directed to execute, on 

behalf of Oroville City Council, the Amendment to the Extra Duty 
Agreement with the California Department of Parks and Recreation. A 
copy of the Amendment is hereby attached to this Resolution. 
 

2. The City Clerk shall attest to the adoption of this Resolution. 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Oroville at a regular 

meeting on January 21, 2020, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  

 
 
                          

       Chuck Reynolds, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
                                                                     
Scott E. Huber, City Attorney   Jackie Glover, Assistant City Clerk 
 

73

Item 5.



74

Item 5.



Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: BILL LAGRONE; CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

WADE ATTEBERRY; PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 

RE: PURCHASE OF A STUMPEX STUMP GRINDER 

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2020 

SUMMARY 

The Council may consider authorizing staff to purchase a Stumpex Stump Grinder.   

DISCUSSION 

The Parks and Trees Department has removed numerous trees throughout town.  The most 
effective way to remove the stumps that are left is with a stump grinder.  The City of Oroville 
currently owns a small stump grinder that is very labor intensive to use on medium to large 
stumps.  It is essential to the planting of a new tree that the stump be removed and allowed to 
decompose prior to a new tree being planted.  

Staff is recommending the purchase of the Stumpex stump grinder.  This unit is not like a 
traditional stump grinder. A traditional stump grinder has a wheel with teeth that runs at a very 
high RPM that chips away at the stump from side to side throwing grindings in an 
uncontrolled and unsafe manner.  The Stumpex attaches to a backhoe, and with very low 
RPMs, bores through the top of the stump cutting, shaving, and grinding to the desired depth 
leaving all debris within the tree pit where the tree once was.  This removal process reduced 
City liability from flying debris and provides valuable compost for decomposition and 
replanting of a replacement tree that is appropriate for the area 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funding will come from the capital equipment replacement fund in the amount of $23,594.00 

RECOMMENDATION 

Authorize staff to purchase the Stumpex Stump Grinder 

ATTACHMENTS 

Pamphlet on the Stumpex Stump Grinder 
 

75

Item 6.



Stump Grinder
Stumpex Stump Attachment

SAFE  •  PRODUCTIVE  •  COST-EFFECTIVE76

Item 6.



GS-30F-0019S

fecon.com
3460 Grant Dr.

Lebanon, OH 45036 
sales@fecon.com 

+1 513 696 4430
800.528.3113

• Operators cab must be protected with both properly maintained 1/2” LEXAN® Glass (or equal) and Falling Object Protection. 
• Always insure that your carrier manufacturers safety features (including Falling Object Protection, and Roll-Over Protection meet your job safety requirements. 
• Certain guarding and features may have been removed for illustrative purposes, always run with proper guarding.  
• Weights are subject to vary based on options. • Safety Is The Responsibility Of The Operator. 
• Specifications subject to change without notice. • Pictures may contain optional accessories.  
• Photographs may have been altered for marketing purposes. 3/18

HOW IT WORKS

SAFE, POWERFUL & DURABLE

LESS IS MORE

• Any Species of Wood
•  Bores 20” into Ground while Cutting Feeder Roots
•  Durable AR500 Steel Blades make the Stumper Tough, Even in 
    Rocky Conditions
•  Safer than Conventional Stumpers due to Slow Rotation 
    Auger Bit Action

•  No Carbide Tools to Replace
•  Low Maintenance (Greasing & Sharpening every 1,000 Stumps)
•  Low RPM Auger Bit  (7-16 RPM) Leads to Easy Clean-up and has 
    no High Speed Flying Debris for Safer Work Zone
•  Fraction of Work Time Compared to Conventional Stumpers
•  Mount on Skid Steers with 20-42 GPM / 2,500 to 4,000 psi
•  Mount on excavators with 30-55 GPM / 3500 to 5000 psi
•  Mount on exacvators with 12-20 ton rating 

Flow Speed Depth into Stump Per Min
GPM RPM 3/4” Bit

20 7.3 5.5”
24 8.8 6.6”

28 10.2 7.7”
32 11.7 8.8”
36 13.1 9.8”
40 14.7 11”
42 16.1 12.1”

8” to 28”

With One Bore Multiple Bores for 
Larger Stumps

Greater than 28”

3/4” Thick 
AR500 Material

Primary Blade to 
Pilot the Bore

Stepped Blades for 
More Efficient Cut

Hardened Auger Cone for 
Positive Draw into Stump

Up to 30,000 ft lbs 
Torque

Attachment Weight
1,368 lbs

Up to 50,000 ft lbs 
Torque

EXCAVATOR STUMPEXSKID STEER STUMPEX

Stepped Blades for 
More Efficient Cut

3/4” Thick 
AR500 Material

Primary Blade to 
Pilot the Bore

Hardened Auger Cone for 
Positive Draw into Stump

Attachment Weight
2,000 lbs 

(without mount)

FASTER THAN TRADITIONAL 
STUMP GRINDERS

77

Item 6.





00070541.1  1 of 1 

  OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL  
STAFF REPORT 

 
TO: MAYOR CHUCK REYNOLDS AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 

FROM: BILL LAGRONE, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 SCOTT E. HUBER, CITY ATTORNEY 

 

RE:  PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE INPUT REGARDING TRANSITION TO BY-

DISTRICT ELECTIONS FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS  

 

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2020 

 

SUMMARY   The Council will hold a public hearing to receive a presentation from Q2 Data & 
Research LLC and to receive input from the public regarding the transition to a by-district 
election process. 
 

DISCUSSION.   On December 3, 2019, the City Council adopted a resolution of intention to 

transition from at-large to by-district elections.  Pursuant to California Elections Code §10010, 
this is the first of two public hearings to inform the public about the districting process, present 
options available to the City, receive community input, and receive a presentation from Q2 Data 
& Research LLC on the criteria for drawing the boundaries of the voting districts, prior to drafting 
district map boundary alternatives. 
 
To comply with the California Voting Rights Act (CVRA), the City will begin the transition to by-
district elections within the required timeframe in preparation for the 2020 General Election.  
Pursuant to Elections Code §10010, the city is required to hold at least two public hearings over 
a period of no more than 30 days before any map or maps of the boundaries for the proposed 
voting districts are drawn.  At the public hearings, the community is invited to provide input 
regarding the composition of the districts.  Following the public hearings, the Council will then 
present the draft maps for public comment and review in two subsequent public hearings.  The 
Council will then provide further direction to finalize the map, which will be presented to the 
Council for a final vote.   
 
The Council is the final decision-making body on adopting district boundaries. 
 
The Council will hold a public hearing to receive input regarding the transition to a by-district 
election process. 
 
BUDGET EFFECT.  None related to the public hearing.  The costs for the demographer and 
other related fees were previously approved by the Council.  
 

RECOMMENDATION.   Open a public hearing to receive a presentation from Q2 Data & 
Research LLC and to receive input from the public. 
 

78

Item 7.





Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: BILL LAGRONE, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

RE: SECOND READING OF A DRAFT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
OROVILLE AMENDING SECTIONS 17.04.060 AND 5.28.010 AND ADDING 
SECTIONS 5.28.095, 5.28.130 AND 5.28.140 OF THE OROVILLE 
MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING PROHIBITING THE SALE OF 
FLAVORED TOBACCO 
 

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2020 

SUMMARY 

The Council will hold a public hearing to consider approving the second reading of an 
ordinance to prohibit the sale of flavored tobacco within the City limits. Input will be 
considered from the Planning Commission and the public on both sides of the issue. 

DISCUSSION 

In the interest of improved public health and especially for Oroville’s youth, the City 
Council and Planning Commission have met several times to consider enacting a ban 
on the sale of flavored tobacco products, as defined, within the City limits.  
 
On January 7, 2020 the Council approved the First reading of the attached ordinance.  
 
The attached draft ordinance for its second reading prohibits the sale by any retailer of 
all flavored tobacco products including menthol, whether smoked, chewed or vaped.  It 
is modeled after the enacted Sacramento City Ordinance.   
 
If approved, the ordinance would take effect 30 days after its signing.  
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 

A likely loss of some sales tax revenues as per the prior analysis.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt Ordinance 1841 -- AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE AMENDING 

SECTIONS 17.04.060 AND 5.28.010 AND ADDING SECTIONS 5.28.095, 5.28.130 AND 

79

Item 8.



Page 2 

5.28.140 OF THE OROVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING PROHIBITING THE SALE 
OF FLAVORED TOBACCO. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Draft ordinance with a full ban on flavored tobacco products. 

2. January 7, 2020 staff report on the topic. 
 

80

Item 8.



Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: BILL LAGRONE, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

RE: FIRST READING OF A DRAFT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE 
AMENDING SECTIONS 17.04.060 AND 5.28.010 AND ADDING SECTIONS 
5.28.095, 5.28.130 AND 5.28.140 OF THE OROVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE 
REGARDING PROHIBITING THE SALE OF FLAVORED TOBACCO 
 

DATE: JANUARY 7, 2020 

SUMMARY 

The Council will hold a public hearing to consider approving the first reading of an ordinance 
to prohibit the sale of flavored tobacco within the City limits. Input will be considered from the 
Planning Commission and the public on both sides of the issue. 

DISCUSSION 

In the interest of improved public health and especially for Oroville’s youth, on October 
1, 2019, the City Council heard for the second time testimony from many individuals 
and groups who pointed out the health effects and increasing use by youth of e-
cigarettes and flavored tobacco liquids. The Council then directed staff to prepare an 
ordinance to prohibit the sale of flavored tobacco products within the City limits. 
Because some of the code changes would affect Title 17 (Zoning Code), the Council 
also directed the Planning Commission to hear the question1. 
 
The Planning Commission met twice on the issue and recommended that the City 
Council take no action at this time to ban or limit flavored tobacco products in Oroville.  
Instead the Commission recommends the City send a letter to the Governor and the 
State Legislature urging immediate action to ban flavored vaping products statewide, 
and/or take other appropriate measures to protect the health of our State’s youth. The 
primary reason for this recommendation was to avoid creating a commercial advantage 
to tobacco retailers outside the city limits at the expense of our retailers. More 
background can be found in the Commission’s October 29 and November 21 meeting 
agenda packets (attached). 
 
There is almost universal acknowledgement that vaping by our youth has reached 
epidemic proportions across the nation, and the Federal government, the State 

                                                           
1 The Planning Commission’s charge in this case was to “    evaluate information from staff and testimony for the 
purpose of making recommendations to guide legislative action”  from The Job of the Planning Commissioner, by 
Albert Solnit, ©1987, 3rd edition revised, page 5. 

81

Item 8.



Page 2 

government, and dozens of local jurisdictions are acting to restrict, educate, and/or 
study vaping and its health effects. On October 1, there were 29 California jurisdictions 
that had enacted some form of an ordinance.  As of November 14 there are over 50 
who had done so. 
 
The attached draft ordinance prohibits the sale by any retailer of all flavored tobacco 
products including menthol, whether smoked, chewed or vaped.  It is modeled after the 
enacted Sacramento City Ordinance.   
 
If approved, the second reading and adoption would be scheduled for Tuesday, 
January 20, 2020.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

Assuming a ban on all flavored tobacco products, the lost sales of e-cigarettes and 
other flavored tobacco products would mean minimal sales tax revenue losses to the 
City -- in the range of $10,000 - $20,000 per year.  Total sales tax revenues in 2018 
from those likely to be tobacco retailers were $660,334 (service stations, food markets, 
and liquor stores combined). However, if Oakland’s experience is repeated in Oroville 
and our stores are bypassed, lost City sales tax revenue could be up to $90,000 per 
year. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

Provide direction to staff on these options: 
1. Approve first reading of ordinance as is, which prohibits the sale of all 

flavored tobacco products within the City limits; 
2. Modify the ordinance to allow sale of flavored tobacco products at Oroville’s 

five smoke shops only; 
3. Adopt the Planning Commission’s recommendation to take no action, but 

send a letter encouraging the State to prohibit flavored tobacco products 
statewide; 

4. If adopting a ban, the Council may also consider whether to make the ban 
effective immediately or to wait a period of time to allow retailers to sell their 
existing inventory. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Draft ordinance assuming a full ban on flavored tobacco products. 
2. Planning Commission and Council meeting staff reports and backup materials. 

 

82

Item 8.



Oroville Municipal Code 

Proposed changes to affect a prohibition on flavored tobacco products 

 

These changes are intended to prohibit the sale of flavored tobacco products in the City of Oroville. The 
changes will: 

1. Effectively remove flavored tobacco products from smoke shops and from stores that sell 
tobacco under a Tobacco Retailers License; 

2. Continue to prohibit sale of tobacco products and/or paraphernalia to persons younger than 
the minimum age; 

3. Will not eliminate the sale of electronic cigarettes, but will prohibit selling any product other 
than tobacco or nicotine for use with them; 

4. “Smoking” as defined in OMC 9.04.170 includes … ”inhaling, exhaling burning or carrying any 
lighted …..combustible substance in any manner and in any form.”  Smoking, including vaping, 
will thus continue to be prohibited in enclosed public places and other places as defined;  

 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE AMENDING SECTIONS 17.04.060 AND 5.28.010 AND 
ADDING SECTIONS 5.28.095, 5.28.130 AND 5.28.140 OF THE OROVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE 

REGARDING PROHIBITING THE SALE OF FLAVORED TOBACCO 

WHEREAS, tobacco use remains the leading cause of preventable death in the United 

States, killing more than 480, 000 people each year. It causes or contributes to many forms of 

cancer, as well as heart disease and respiratory diseases, among other health disorders.  
Tobacco use remains a public health crisis of the first order, in terms of the human suffering 
and loss of life it causes. the financial costs it imposes on society, and the burdens it places on 
our health care system; and 

WHEREAS, flavored tobacco products are commonly sold by California tobacco retailers. 

For example: 97.4% of stores that sell cigarettes sell menthol cigarettes; 94.5% of stores that 
sell little cigars sell them in flavored varieties; 84.2% of stores that sell electronic smoking 
devices sell flavored varieties; and 83.8% of stores that sell chew or snus sell flavored varieties; 
and 

WHEREAS, each day, approximately 2,500 children in the United States try their first 

cigarette; and another 8,400 children under 18 years of age become new regular, daily 
smokers. 81% of youth who have ever used a tobacco product report that the first tobacco 
product they used was flavored. Flavored tobacco products promote youth initiation of tobacco 

83

Item 8.



use and help young occasional smokers to become daily smokers by reducing or masking the 
natural harshness and taste of tobacco smoke and thereby increasing the appeal of tobacco 
products. As tobacco companies well know, menthol, in particular, cools and numbs the throat 
to reduce throat irritation and make the smoke feel smoother, making menthol cigarettes an 
appealing option for youth who are initiating tobacco use. Tobacco companies have used 
flavorings such as mint and wintergreen in smokeless tobacco products as part of a "graduation 
strategy" to encourage new users to start with tobacco products with lower levels of nicotine 
and progress to products with higher levels of nicotine. It is therefore unsurprising that young 
people are much more likely to use menthol-, candy and fruit-flavored tobacco products, 
including not just cigarettes but also cigars, cigarillos, and hookah tobacco, than adults. Data 
from the National Youth Tobacco Survey indicate that more than two-fifths of U.S. middle 
school and high school smokers report using flavored little cigars or flavored cigarettes. Further, 
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention has reported a more than 800% increase in 
electronic cigarette use among middle school and high school students between 2011 and 
2015. Nicotine solutions, which are consumed via electronic smoking devices such as electronic 
cigarettes, are sold in thousands of flavors that appeal to youth, such as cotton candy and 
bubble gum; and 

WHEREAS, much as young people disproportionately use flavored tobacco products 

including menthol cigarettes, the same can be said of certain minority groups. In one survey, 
the percentage of people who smoke cigarettes that reported smoking menthol cigarettes in 
the prior month included, most dramatically, 82.6% of Blacks or African-Americans who smoke 
cigarettes.  The statistics for other groups were: 53.2% of Native Hawaiians or other Pacific 
Islanders who smoke cigarettes; 36.9% of individuals with multiracial backgrounds who smoke 
cigarettes; 32.3% of Hispanics or Latinos who smoke cigarettes; 31.2% of Asians who smoke 
cigarettes; 24.8% of American Indians or Alaska Natives who smoke cigarettes; and 23.8% of 
Whites or Caucasians who smoke cigarettes. People who identify as LGBT and young adults with 
mental health conditions also struggle with disproportionately high rates of menthol cigarette 
use. The disproportionate use of menthol cigarettes among targeted groups, especially the 
extremely high use among African-Americans, is troubling because of the long-term adverse 
health impacts on those groups; and 

WHEREAS, between 2004 and 2014, overall smoking prevalence decreased, but use of 

menthol cigarettes increased among both young adults (ages 18-25) and other adults (ages 
26+). These statistics are consistent with the finding that smoking menthol cigarettes reduces 
the likelihood of successfully quitting smoking. Scientific modeling has projected that a national 
ban on menthol cigarettes could save between 300,000 and 600,000 lives by 2050. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oroville does ordain as follows: 

 

84

Item 8.



SECTION 1. Oroville Municipal Code Section 17.04.060 is hereby amended as follows:  

Characterizing Flavor. A taste or aroma, other than the taste or aroma of tobacco, imparted either prior 
to or during consumption of a tobacco product or any byproduct produced by the tobacco product, 
including, but not limited to, tastes or aromas relating to menthol, mint, wintergreen, fruit, chocolate, 
vanilla, honey, candy, cocoa, dessert, alcohol beverage, herb, or spice.  A tobacco product shall not be 
determined to have a characterizing flavor solely because of the use of additives or flavorings or the 
provision of ingredient information. Rather, it is the presence of a distinguishable taste or aroma, or 
both, as described in the first sentence of this definition, that constitutes a characterizing flavor. 

 

"Flavored tobacco product" means any tobacco product that contains a constituent that imparts a 
characterizing flavor. 

……… 

Tobacco paraphernalia. Cigarette papers or wrappers, pipes, holders of smoking materials of all types, 
cigarette rolling machines, vaporizers and any other item designed for the smoking, preparation, storing, 
or consumption of tobacco products. For the purpose of this title, electronic cigarette supplies are 
considered tobacco paraphernalia. 

Tobacco product. Any substance containing tobacco leaf, including but not limited to cigarettes, cigars, 
pipe tobacco, hookah tobacco, snuff, chewing tobacco, dipping tobacco, snus, bidis, or any other 
preparation of tobacco; and any product or formulation of matter containing biologically active amounts 
of nicotine that is manufactured, sold, offered for sale, or otherwise distributed with the expectation 
that the product or matter will be introduced into the human body, but does not include any cessation 
product specifically approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration for use in treating 
nicotine or tobacco dependence. For the purpose of this title, electronic cigarettes are considered a 
tobacco product. For the purposes of this title, tobacco products exclude products with a characterizing 
flavor.  

 

 

SECTION 2. Oroville Municipal Code Section 5.28.010  is hereby amended to read as follows: 

“5.28.010 Definitions. 

The following words and phrases, whenever used in this chapter, shall have the meanings defined in this 
section unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 

“Arm’s length transaction” means a sale in good faith and for valuable consideration that reflects the 
fair market value in the open market between 2 informed and willing parties, neither of which is under 
any compulsion to participate in the transaction. A sale between relatives, related companies or 
partners, or a sale for which a significant purpose is avoiding the effect of the violations of this chapter is 
not an arm’s length transaction. 

85

Item 8.



“Characterizing Flavor” means a taste or aroma, other than the taste or aroma of tobacco, imparted 
either prior to or during consumption of a tobacco product or any byproduct produced by the tobacco 
product, including, but not limited to, tastes or aromas relating to menthol, mint, wintergreen, fruit, 
chocolate, vanilla, honey, candy, cocoa, dessert, alcohol beverage, herb, or spice.  A tobacco product 
shall not be determined to have a characterizing flavor solely because of the use of additives or 
flavorings or the provision of ingredient information. Rather, it is the presence of a distinguishable taste 
or aroma, or both, as described in the first sentence of this definition, that constitutes a characterizing 
flavor. 

"Flavored tobacco product" means any tobacco product that contains a constituent that imparts a 
characterizing flavor. 

 

“Person” means any natural person, partnership, cooperative association, corporation, personal 
representative, receiver, trustee, assignee, or any other legal entity. 

“Proprietor” means a person with an ownership or managerial interest in a business. An ownership 
interest shall be deemed to exist when a person has a 10% or greater interest in the stock, assets, or 
income of a business other than the sole interest of security for debt. A managerial interest shall be 
deemed to exist when a person can or does have or share ultimate control over the day-to-day 
operations of a business. 

“Self-service display” means the open display or storage of tobacco products or tobacco paraphernalia 
in a manner that is physically accessible in any way to the general public without the assistance of the 
retailer or employee of the retailer and a direct person-to-person transfer between the purchaser and 
the retailer or employee of the retailer. A vending machine is a form of self-service display. 

“Smoking.” Refer to Section 9.04.170 for definition. 

“Tobacco paraphernalia” means cigarette papers or wrappers, pipes, holders of smoking materials of all 
types, cigarette rolling machines, vaporizers and any other item designed for the smoking, preparation, 
storing, or consumption of tobacco products. For the purpose of this chapter, electronic cigarette 
supplies are considered tobacco paraphernalia. 

“Tobacco product” means any substance containing tobacco leaf, including, but not limited to, 
cigarettes, cigars, pipe tobacco, hookah tobacco, snuff, chewing tobacco, dipping tobacco, snus, bidis, or 
any other preparation of tobacco; and any product or formulation of matter containing biologically 
active amounts of nicotine that is manufactured, sold, offered for sale, or otherwise distributed with the 
expectation that the product or matter will be introduced into the human body, but does not include 
any cessation product specifically approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration for use 
in treating nicotine or tobacco dependence. For the purpose of this chapter, electronic cigarettes are 
considered a tobacco product. For the purposes of this title, tobacco products exclude products with a 
characterizing flavor. 

“Tobacco retailer” means any person who sells, offers for sale, or exchanges for any form of 
consideration, tobacco, tobacco products or tobacco paraphernalia. “Tobacco retailing” shall mean the 
doing of any of these things. This definition is without regard to the quantity of tobacco, tobacco 

86

Item 8.



products, or tobacco paraphernalia sold, offered for sale, exchanged, or offered for exchange. (Ord. 
1794 § 1)” 

 

SECTION 3. Section 5.28.095 is hereby added to the Oroville Municipal Code to read as follows: 

“5.28.095 Sale or offer for sale of flavored tobacco products prohibited. 

(a)The sale or offer for sale, by any person or tobacco retailer of any flavored tobacco product is 
prohibited and no person or tobacco retailer shall sell, or offer for sale, any flavored tobacco product. 

(b)There shall be a rebuttable presumption that a tobacco product is a flavored tobacco product if a 
manufacturer or any of the manufacturer's agents or employees, in the course of their agency or 
employment, has made a statement or claim directed to consumers or to the public that the tobacco 
product has or produces a characterizing flavor including, but not limited to, text, color, and/or images 
on the product's labeling or packaging that are used to explicitly or implicitly communicate that the 
tobacco product has a characterizing flavor.” 

 

SECTION 4. Sections 5.28.130 and 5.28.140 are hereby added to the Oroville Municipal Code to read 
as follows: 

“5.28.130 No conflict with federal or state law. 

Nothing in this chapter shall be interpreted or applied so as to create any requirement, power, or duty 
that is preempted by federal or state law. 

 

5.28.140 Severability. 

If any provision, section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Chapter 5.28, or any 
application thereof to any person or circumstance, is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or 
applications of the chapter. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this chapter, and 
each provision, section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, and word not declared invalid or 
unconstitutional without regard to whether any other portion of this chapter or application thereof 
would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional.” 

 

87

Item 8.





Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: MAYOR REYNOLDS AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: BILL LAGRONE, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

RE: FISCAL YEAR UPDATE  

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2020 

SUMMARY 

The Council will hear an update of Council accomplishments and financial update for 
first half of fiscal year 2019/2020 
 
DISCUSSION 

The first two quarters of Fiscal year 2019/2020 have been completed. The Council has 
undertaken numerous projects and provided staff with direction on many issues. A 
concern for the Council is the status of projects. The Council will often authorize projects 
and provide direction, then moves on to another project without being updated on the 
status of the projects already underway. This report is an attempt to better inform the 
Council regarding status of projects. Most projects are well underway and progressing 
or are completed. Below is a list of projects and direction as well as the status of the 
project.   
 
 

Project Status 

Approval of Annual Budget Implemented 

Annexation of Various Thermalito areas In progress 

Adoption of Cal OES Hazard Mitigation Plan Completed 

General Plan Amendments In progress 

Memorandum of Understanding for SRO’s with Oroville Elementary Completed 

Insulation for Mechanics Shop Completed 

Lower Wyandotte Culvert Rehabilitation In progress 

Wyandotte Creek Analysis (Drainage behind Big Tires) In progress 

Manhole raise project-Olive Highway Complete 

Police Dispatching Contract with Gridley Complete 

SB2 Planning Grant application (Grant awarded for $160,000) Complete  

Montgomery Street Roundabout traffic calming measures In progress 

Request for proposal for fire service In progress 

88

Item 9.



Page 2 

Executive Leadership Restructure In progress 

2019 Paving Projects 90% complete In progress 

Prohibiting the Sale of Flavored Tobacco In progress 

Establishment of Problem oriented Policing team In progress 

Hiring Planning Intern Complete 

Sewer System Management Plan Update Complete 

Lott Home roof replacement In progress 

Adoption of 2019 California Building Code Complete 

Janitorial contract for City Hall Complete 

Affordable Housing Project Planning and Coordinating  In progress 

2018 Grant Award from Home Investment Partnership (1 Million) Complete 

2019 Grant Application for Home Investment Partnership Complete 

Veteran Housing Partnership phase one of three phases Complete  

Grant application for Emergency Generators  Complete 

Prop 68 Grant application for River Access Trail improvement Complete 

Motor replacement for Fire Engine 2 In progress 

Tree Pruning Contract (Contract issued / Work in progress) In progress 

Sewer Lining Project (engineering contract) In progress 

Sell of 750 Montgomery Street (Waiting on County Oversight board) In progress 

Neighborhood Traffic Calming measures Complete 

Districting of City for Council Elections In progress 

Project Design and Management for ATP improvements for SR162 Complete 

Hiring of new Public Safety Director Complete 

Financial Analysis for Fiscal year 2018/2019 Complete 

Safety Center Dispatch remodel In progress 

Access road agreement with the Department of Water Resources Complete 

Repair of Arson Damage to Municipal Auditorium In progress 

Agreement with the YMCA for programming at the Municipal In progress 

New Corporation Yard Building (In Design and Planning phase) In progress 

Replacement of Loader Tractor (Delivered in December) Complete 

ATC Building at Airport rented and generating $6000.00 per month Complete 

Taxiway K rehab Federally funded at 95% Complete 

 
The list above is not all inclusive, it represents the larger projects the Council has 
accomplished or has direct to be accomplished. This fiscal year has seen some set 
backs as well. The most notable set back is the arson of the Municipal Auditorium. The 
City was well on its way to have the building in a condition so that it could once again 
be a venue for sporting activities and community events. The Municipal Auditorium is 
currently being repaired by a contractor hired by our Insurance JPA. The included 
repairs will be the floor under the stage area, the rebuilding of the stage, painting inside, 
new stage curtains, all necessary wiring repair from fire damage, and any other fire 
related damage. The City Council had previously authorized monies for the repair of 
the sheetrock in the locker rooms, painting of the lobby area, and new doors for the 
lobby area. Staff is optimistic all repairs will be completed by July of 2020.  
 

89

Item 9.



Page 3 

 
 
Building and Community Development 
 

2019 Residential New Construction  

Single Family Homes* 110 single family homes / Manufactured homes 
Apartments 2 complexes / 57 units total 

* Staff is currently processing two additional subdivisions with a total of approximately 120 
additional single-family homes to be completed in 2020. Staff is currently working with two 
affordable housing developers to build an additional 150 affordable apartments 

 

2019 Commercial Construction 

Commercial Infill construction 7 
Commercial new construction 2 

 
2019 New Business Occupancy 

New Business 92 
 
The staffing of the Community Development is mostly staff by consultants from Bureau 
Veritas. Currently we are staffing with 1 Community Development Director, 1 Principal 
Planner, 1 Building Inspector and 1 Engineer. When we entered into the is fiscal year, 
we were able to keep up with the workload with an Engineer one day per week. The 
workload has significantly increased. Our current Engineer is doing a good job, just 
lacks the necessary time to keep up with the demand. This should not be construed as 
criticism of his work, just a reality of the volume of work. It is necessary to have an 
onsite person more then one day per week. Bureau Veritas can provide an Engineer 
three days per week. Being onsite three days per week will allow for better customer 
service. Often issues can be resolved with a face to face meeting which will not delay 
projects or hinder the ability of the contractors to keep working.  
 
With this increase in staffing it will be necessary to make a budget adjustment to provide 
for additional funds for this contract. In fiscal year 2019/2020 an allocation of $350,000 
was made to fund the Bureau Veritas contract. It is necessary to increase that funding 
to and amount not to exceed $580,000. The monies for this contract will come from 
several places in the budget. Currently the budget contains a fully funded building 
official; however, this position is vacant, and we do not anticipate filling it at this time. If 
approved the funding for this position will be diverted to the Bureau Veritas Contract. 
The budget also contains funding for a part time Engineer. This position is funded 
through the Contract with Bennett Engineering. This contract will be reduced by the 
reduction of the one day a week engineer. This funding will also be diverted to the 
Bureau Veritas Contract. These adjustments will provide enough funding to fully fund 
the Bureau Veritas Contract.  
 
 

90

Item 9.



Page 4 

The City is actively pursuing the annexation of serval Thermalito areas. This is a long 
and labor-intensive process to ensure it is done properly. To ensure the process is 
followed and the task is completed it is necessary to assign a project manager. 
Currently the City has been using the services of Tom Lando. Mr. Lando is a very 
experience Planner and will easily manage this project to a conclusion. Mr. Lando is 
currently funded as a consultant for special projects / Administration. Mr. Lando could 
be utilized as a special project manager utilizing the existing funding for the next 18 to 
24 months. The City has been awarded $160,000 from the SB 2 grant application that 
was submitted in September of 2019. These dollars can be utilized to help fund both 
Bureau Veritas and a special project manager for annexation 
 
 
Public Safety 
 

Police Activity 
July -December 

 

Incidents 20460 

Arrest 1261 

Citations 647 

 

Fire Activity 
 

Incidents 2267 

Medical Related 1558 

Fire / Collision / Community Assist 709 

 
 

Late last year the Council authorized the creation of a Problem Oriented Policing Team. 
This team includes 1 Sergeant, 2 Police Officers, 2 Municipal Law Enforcement Officers 
(MLE), and 2 Public Works Operators. To fund these positions fully the cost annually is 
approximately $442,000. 
 
In order to fund these positions, it is necessary to make budget adjustments. Staff has 
identified 5 positions in our current budget that are funded but not filled. The funding 
available from these positions is approximately $350,000. The monies currently 
identified for these specific positions will be moved to fund this project. This movement 
leaves a shortage in funding for this project, it will be necessary to utilize Measure U 
dollars to fully fund this project. Measure U is currently over performing expectations 
and has available funding for this project.  
 
As we move into the future should our revenues decrease it will be necessary to revisit 
all these movements to ensure they have adequate funding. These new positions will 
all be included in the new budget for 2020/2021.  
 
 
 

91

Item 9.



Page 5 

There is also the potential of more MLE position to address Fire related issues. Council 
had directed staff to return in December with report back to Council regarding these 
potential positions.  
 
Staff was prepared to present the item; however, the Oroville Fire Fighters Association 
requested to meet and confer over the addition of the positions. As soon as the met 
and confer has occurred staff will return to Council as directed.  
 

Public Works - Sewer Division 

 

The Public Works Sewer Department is currently staffed with five staff members and is 
funded for seven staff members. The Supervisor of this Department is currently actively 
recruiting and interviewing to fill at least one of the funded positions. The Sewer 
Department has a need for a new mid-size dump truck. Staff will be returning to Council 
at a later date with this request.  
 
Fleet Maintenance Division  
 

The Fleet Maintenance shop is fully staffed and operational. This is a critical area of 
responsibility as they ensure the mechanical soundness of all our vehicles.  
 

Public Works – Parks and Trees 
 

The Public Works – Parks and Trees is currently funded for 8 Parks and Tree workers, 
currently 5 of these positions are staffed. The Parks and Trees Department is currently 
actively recruiting and interview for these positions. The Parks and Trees Department 
has a need for 2 new vehicles. The need comes from the lack of vehicles and 
replacement of worn out vehicles. Staff will be returning to Council at a later date with 
this request.              
 

Streets Department 
 

The Public Works – Streets is currently funded for 8 Streets workers, currently 4 of 
these positions are staffed. The Streets Department is currently actively recruiting and 
interview for these positions. The Streets Department has a need for 2 new vehicles. 
The need comes from the lack of vehicles and replacement of worn out vehicles. Staff 
will be returning to Council at a later date with this request.  
 

Human Resources 
 
The Human Resource Manager is the only employee in this Department. As the City’s 
workforce increases it will be necessary to provide additional personnel for this Department. 
The Human Resource Manager is currently in need of a part time person to help with task 
such as filing, scanning and general archiving. Staff believes these duties can be redistributed 
amongst current staff. If the need arises for additional staffing for this department, we will 
return to Council with that request.  
 

92

Item 9.



Page 6 

 

Finance Department 
  
The Finance Department is currently funded and staffed with 4 personnel. Finance Director 
Duncan is satisfied with the number of staff for this department at this time. As the City’s 
workforce increases it will be necessary to provide additional personnel for this Department.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

Depends on Council direction. If Council accepts described plan, staff will return at next 
Council meeting with any necessary budget adjustments 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

Provide staff direction as to necessary staffing changes and return to Council with any 
necessary budget adjustments  

 
 

 

93

Item 9.



Scott W. Lawrence

3351 Morningside Drive

Oroville, CA 95966

530 990 3923

scottwlaw9137@gmail.com

December 2, 2019

Fellow Park Commissioners and City Staff,

It is with regret that I give my notice of intended resignation from the City of Oroville Park

Commission. It has been an honor to serve the City of Oroville in my capacity on the Park

Commission for the past several years. My wife and I are living part time in Washington State

and I find our time there is hindering my ability to serve on the Park Commission in the capacity

I feel appropriate. I believe it to be in the best interest of the City to find a replacement for me

on the Park Commission. I am therefore making my resignation date effective January 31, 2020

to allow time for the City to find my replacement.

It has been a pleasure serving on the Park Commission and I wish the City much success in it's

continued effort to meet the park and cultural needs of the community.

Warm regards,

Scott Lawrence

94

Item i.



FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

Office of Energy Projects
Division of Dam Safety and Inspections - San Francisco Regional Office

100 First Street, Suite 2300

San Francisco, CA 94105-3084

(415) 369-3300 Office-(415) 369-3322 Facsimile

January 7, 2020

In reply refer to:
Project No. 2088-CA
NATDAM No. CA00273

Mr. Rath Moseley, General Manager
South Feather Water and Power Agency

2310 Oro-Quincy Highway
Oroville, CA 95965

Re: Forbestown Diversion Dam Slide Gate Valve Repair

Dear Mr. Moseley:

This is in response to a letter dated October 25, 2019 from Mr. Matt Colwell and
Mrs. Kristen McKiliop that submitted a report of the completion of the repairs of the
slide gate valve that were required due to the 2018 gate mis-operation incident at
Forbestown Diversion Dam, which is part of the South Feather Power Project, FERC
No. 2088. We have reviewed the submittal, and we have no comments.

We appreciate your continued efforts in this aspect of the Commission's dam
safety program. If you have any questions, please contact Mr. Ricardo Galdamez at
(415)369-3310.

Sincerely,

Frank L. Blackett, P.E.

Regional Engineer

95

Item ii.



FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

Office of Energy Projects

Division of Dam Safety and Inspections - San Francisco Regional Office
100 First Street, Suite 2300

San Francisco. CA 94105-3084

(415) 369-3300 Office -(415) 369-3322 Facsimile

January 8. 2020

in reply refer to:
Project No. 2100-CA
NATDAM No. CA00035

Ms. Gwen Knitlweis. Chief

Hydropower License Planning and Compliance Office
California Department of Water Resources
P.O. Box 942836

Sacramento. California 942.36-0001

Re: Oroville Emergency Recovery - Spillways Lakeside Access Road Fill Removal,
FERC Project No. 2100.

Dear Ms. Knittweis:

This is in response to your letter dated December 13. 2019 regarding the removal
of a portion of the lakeside access road below elevation 900 feet at the Oroville Dam. part
of the Feather River Project. FERC No. 2100. This temporary road was constructed on
the upstream side of the dam. immediately to the left of the Flood Control Outlet gate
structure as pan of the spillway recovery project. We have completed our review and
have the following comments:

1. Ensure that all stockpiled material is located above elevation 900 feet, as noted in
your submitial. The stockpile must always remain above the reservoir and not
become saturated by the reservoir.

2. Provide a plan and schedule for the long-term disposal or use of this material,
taking into consideration the Section 404 permit, or any other permits that may be
required for the intended end use of this stockpile.

You are authorized to remove the temporary road as indicated in your submittal
immediately upon receipt of this letter, Within 60 days of the date of this letter, provide a
response to Comment No. 2. We appreciate your continued cooperation in this aspect of
the Commission's dam safety program, If you have questions, please contact Doug Boyer
at (503) 502-3048 or me at (415) 369-3318,

Sincerely,

Frank L. Blackett. P.E.

Regional Engineer

96

Item ii.



FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

Office of Energy Projects
Division of Dam Safely and Inspections - San Francisco Regional Office

100 First Street, Suite 2300
San Francisco. CA 94105-3084

(415) 369-3300 Office-(415) 369-3322 Facsimile

January 8, 2020

In reply refer to:
Project No. 2100-CA
NATDAM NO.CA00035

Ms. Gwen Knittweis. Chief

Hydropower License Planning and Compliance Office
California Department of Water Resources
P.O. Box 942836

Sacramento. California 94236-0001

Re: Oroville Emergency Recovery - Flood Control Outlet Spillway Monitoring. FERC
Project No. 2100.

Dear Ms. Knittweis:

This is in response to your letter dated December 26. 2019 regarding the
installation of instrumentation in the Flood Control Outlet spillway chute at the Oroville
Dam, pan of the Feather River Project. FERC No. 2100. This instrumentation is intended
to be used to monitor flow velocities and air content of the flows in the spillway. We
have completed our review and have the following comments:

1. The memo attached to the submittal is indicated as a DRAFT version. We require
a final version of the memo be submitted prior to our formal review.

2. Provide a clear discussion of what considerations were made in the design of this
system to prevent any damage to the concrete chute or walls during the installation
of the equipment and during operation of the spillway. This could include damage
to the probe and supports by debris during normal operation, and at least some
consideration to an extreme event impacting the horizontal supports.

Within 60 days of the date of this letter, provide a response to our comments or a
plan and schedule to address our comments. We appreciate your continued cooperation
in this aspect of the Commission's dam safety pro^^. If you have questions, please
contact Wes Cooley at (415) 369-3340 or me at (415) 369-3318.

Sincerely.

Frank L. Blackett, P.E.

Regional Engineer

97

Item ii.



reOERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION
Office of Energy Projects

Division of Dam Safely and Inspections - San Francisco Regional Office
100 First Street, Suite 2300

San Francisco. CA 94105-3084

(415) 369-3300 Office — (415) 369-3322 Facsimile

January 3. 2020

In reply refer to:
Project No. 2I00-CA

We appreciate your cooperation in this aspect of the Commission's dam safely
and hydropower compliance programs. If you have questions, please contact Doug
Boyer at (503) 502-3048 or me at (415) 369-3318.

Sincerely,

Frank L. Blackett. P.E.
Regional Engineer

Ms. Gwen Knittweis, Chief

Hydropower License Planning and Compliance Office
California Department of Water Resources
P.O. Box 942836

Sacramento. California 94236-0001

Subject: Oroville Emergency Recovery-Spillways. Submittal of Hans-Revision 14-
Grading. Signage. Road, and Steps and Revision 15 - Survey Monuments.
Drainage Covers. Access Ladders. Kiosk. Drain Labels, and Grading and Paving.
FERC Project 2100

Dear Ms. Knittweis:

Ms. Sharon Tapia, Chief
CA Dept. of Water Resources
Division of Safety of Dams
P.O. Box 942836

Sacramento, CA 94236-0001

This letter is in response to your October 16. 2019 letter transmitting a revision to
the project plans, part of the Feather River Project. FERC No. 2100. Revision 14
drawings include minor revisions that were made to better accommodate public access
allowing for safe use of the facilities. Revision 15 drawings include the addition of
permanent survey monuments, drainage covers, access ladders, a kiosk modification,
labeling of drains, and minor adjustments to both the grading and paving limits.

The revised drawings are acceptable; we have no additional comments.

Our review has been coordinated with various divisions within FERC. including
the Division of Dam Safety and Inspections (D2SI) and the Division of Hydropower and
Compliance (DHAC).

98

Item ii.



FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY

COMMISSION

Office of Energy Projects
Division of Dam Safety and Inspections - San Francisco Regional

Office 100 First Street, Suite 2300

San Francisco. CA 94105-3084

(415) 369-3300 Office - (415) 369-3322 Facsimile

December 23.2019

Ms. Sharon Tapia. Chief
CA Dept. of Water Resources
Division of Safety of Dams
P.O. Box 942836

Sacramento, CA 94236-

0001

In reply refer to:
Project No. 2I00-CA

Ms. Gwen Knittweis. Chief

Hydropower License Planning and Compliance Office
California Department of Water Resources
P.O. Box 942836

Sacramento, California 94236-0001

Subject: Oroville Emergency Recovery-Spillways. Site Grading Inspection, FERC
Project 2100

Dear Ms. Knittweis:

This letter is in response to your November 18. 2019 letter transmitting minor
revisions to the backfill grading in the vicinity of the Flood Control Outlet (FCO) chute
walls, part of the Feather River Project, FERC No. 2100.

We have reviewed the revised grading plans and we have no comments on the
revised drawings and find them acceptable. However, you are reminded that all
correspondence should be addressed to the Regional Engineer, Mr. Frank L Blackett at
the address listed at the top of this letter.

We appreciate your cooperation in this aspect of the Commission's dam safety
program. If you have questions, please contaM^oug Boyera^503) 502-3048 or me at
(415)369-3318.

T: sSe

L. Blackett. P.E.

nal Engineer

99

Item ii.



Department of Development Services

7 County Center Drive

Oroville, California 95965

T: 530.552.3700

F: 530.538.7785

Paula Daneluk, Director

Pete Calarco, Assistant Director

buttecountv.net/dds

BUTTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

MINOR USE PERMIT MUP19-0003

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Butte County Planning Commission will hold a public hearing
to consider an application for Minor Use Permit MUP19-0003 for Base Camp Village, Inc. on
January 23,2020 at 9:00 a.m. or shortly thereafter in the Butte County Board of Supervisors' Room,
County Administration Center, 25 County Center Drive, Oroville, California as follows:

Project Information

Project: Minor Use Permit MUP 19-0003 APN: 030-020-097

Location: The project site encompasses 4.27 acres located on the north side of Nelson Avenue,
approximately 380 feet west from the intersection of Nelson Avenue and 16th Street, in the
community of Thermalito.

Proposal: The applicant is requesting a Minor Use Permit to construct and operate a Large Residential
Care Facility on property situated in the Very Low Density Residential (VLDR) zone. The proposed
facility will provide pennanent housing for homeless and disabled persons (physical, mental or
substance use). The facility includes 12 units to house 16 persons, with one unit reserved for a full-
time onsite resident manager. The facility will also include the construction of a detached 900 square
foot office building and 960 square foot storage shed.

Butte County is recommending this project to be found categorically exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under section 15303 (Class 3 - New Construction or Conversion
of Small Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines.

The above mentioned application is on file and available for public viewing at the Butte County
Department of Development Services, 7 County Center Drive, Oroville, CA 95965, or online by
entering the project number (MUP 19-0003) at https://dsDermits.buttecountv.net/Search/proiecl.aspx.
Comments may be submitted in writing at any time prior to the hearing or orally at the scheduled
hearing listed above or as may be continued to a later date. If you challenge the above application in
court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing
described in this notice or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission at, or prior
to the public hearing.

For information, please contact Senior Planner Rowland Hickel, Butte County Department of
Development Services, Planning Division at (530) 552.3684 or rhickel@bLiitecQuntv.net.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. if you need special assistance to participate
in the hearing, please contact us at (530) 552.3662. Notification at least 72 hours prior to the hearing
will enable staff to make reasonable arrangements.

BUTTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

PAULA DANELUK. DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

100

Item iii.



VICINITY MAP

Legend
Base Camp Village, LLC

Minor Use Permit
Railroad

Roads

225 4501,350
mFeet

Lakes
MUP19-0003

Streams1:7,000

101

Item iii.



HANDOUTS
AT MEETING
01.21.2020



Districting Giossary

American Community Survey (ACS): A survey that provides data in four categories every year.
The categories are: social, demographic, economic and housing. The ACS replaced the 'long
form' of the census that was collected once every 10 years. The ACS does not report counts of
the population but rather estimates.

At-Large Election: In a jurisdiction (for example a city) with an at-large election system, all
voters in the jurisdiction vote for all candidates running for office in that city. In at-large
election systems, the candidates and office holders may live anywhere within the jurisdiction.

California Voting Rights Act (CVRA): Passed in 2001, the CVRA expands on the federal Voting
Rights Act, making it easier for minority groups in California to prove that their votes are being
diluted in "at-large" elections. Certain cities that have never had minority representation or
have a history of minority candidate suppression can be liable for damages and forced to
change to district elections.

Census Block: The smallest level of census geography used by the Census Bureau to report
census data. In urban areas, census blocks usually conform to city blocks, and in rural areas they
are formed by other physical features and legal boundaries such as bodies of water and roads.
Districting is based on census block-level data.

Census Tract: A small, relatively permanent statistical subdivision of a metropolitan statistical
area or selected non-metropolitan county, delineated for the purpose of presenting decennial
census data. Census tracts usually contain between 2,500 and 8,000 people. Census tracts may
be split by any sub-county geographic entity.

Citizen Voting Age Popuiation (CVAP): A variable collected by the American Community Survey
that is used in Voting Rights Act assessments. The population that is 18 years and older and a

citizen of the United States.

Community of interest: Group of people with one or more specific common interests. For
districting, communities of interest are defined geographically based on where people with
common interests live.

Compactness: Compactness often refers to a district's shape and contours, focusing on how
closely a district's borders resemble a circle or square. When a district has 'tentacles' or oddly

shaped borders, it is often said to be non-compact.

Contiguous OR Contiguity: A contiguous district or is one in which all parts are geographically

connected to each other in some way. Within a contiguous district, one may travel from any
location to any other location without crossing the district boundary.



Some districts are "water-contiguous" which usually means that islands have to be connected

to the mainland; others are contiguous via a bridge. Drawing contiguous districts is applying
the criterion of 'contiguity.'

Cracking: A term used in Voting Rights that describes splitting significantly sized racial or ethnic
communities into multiple districts, rather than keeping them together. Cracking is a particular

problem when the division prevents the community from electing a candidate of its choice
because it constitutes too small a portion of the electorate in the multiple districts.

Criteria for Districting: Rules established in the law that the districting body must follow when
drawing electoral district boundaries. For example, one criterion is that districts have
reasonably equal populations.

Deviation: The difference between the total population of the district and the ideal population
of the district.

Districting: The process of creating equally populated electoral districts by using various criteria

(such as Communities of Interest). In districting, electoral districts are created "from scratch" in
a jurisdiction (a city for example) that does not currently have districts. Jurisdictions that do not
have districts have "at-large" elections. Jurisdiction with districts redraw or adjust them
(usually) every ten years after the release of the new census data to equalize the populations

again. That process is called redistricting.

Equivalency File: A GIS file that shows the relationship between two geographic units. In
districting, this file usually lists each census block in the dataset and indicates which district

each block belongs to. The collection of block assignments is read by GIS software and

displayed as district lines.

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Software: A computer program for capturing, storing,
checking, integrating, manipulating, analyzing and displaying data related to positions on the
Earth's surface. Examples of commonly used GIS software include Google Earth, ArcGIS,
Maptitude and Maplnfo.

Ideal Population: The total population for the jurisdiction as reported by the Census P.L 94-171
dataset divided by the number of districts. The ideal population is the number of people that
each district should contain when the districting process is complete.

Map layer(s): GIS term for spatial/ geographic data files as they are displayed by GIS software.
Map layers may display attribute data. The term 'map layer' is sometimes used interchangeably
with 'spatial file' and 'GIS data file.'

Packing: A term used in Voting Rights that describes over-concentrating a significantly sized
racial or ethnic community within one district when it could have been allocated between two

or more districts in which it had the ability to elect a candidate of its choice. Packing is a



problem because over-concentrating a community in one district reduces or dilutes its ability to
achieve fair representation in the legislative body in general.

Racially polarized voting (RPV) or racial bloc voting or simply 'polarized voting': Racially
polarized voting occurs when voters of different races tend to vote for different candidates. For
example, in an area where White voters tend to vote against the candidates for which Asian
American voters cast their ballots, racially polarized voting is present.

Reasonably Equal Population: The districting criterion that implements the one-person, one-
vote concept derived from the 14th Amendment to the US Constitution.

Redlstrlcting: The constitutionally mandated redrawing of local, state, and federal political
boundaries every ten years following the U.S. census. Redistricting is done to equalize the
populations in the districts, using various criteria.

Redlstrlcting Data (P.L 94-171) Summary File OR 'P.L 94-171 Summary File':
The official name of the file that contains data used for districting and redistricting. Creation of
this file, using data collected through the Decennial Census was mandated by Public Law 94-
171. The PI94-171 file reports basic demographic data for all people in the U.S. and is released
on the census block level.

Section 2 (of the Voting Rights Act): Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act (VRA) prohibits voting
practices, policies, or procedures that have a discriminatory purpose or effect on racial or
language minorities; this section applies nationwide and is a permanent provision of the VRA.
To be in compliance with Section 2 of the VRA districts must provide voters with an equal

opportunity to elect candidates of their choice.

Total Deviation: The sum of the combined deviations of all districts.

Voting Age Population (VAP): The number of people age 18 years or older.

Voting Rights Act (VRA): The Voting Rights Act (VRA or FVRA) was originally passed in 1965 to

prohibit discrimination on the basis of race or color. It has been amended several times, and

now also prohibits discrimination based on membership in certain language minority groups.



Frequently Asked Questions

How can I get involved in the districting process?

The districting process was designed to be as transparent and accessible as possible. You are
invited to attend one or more of the City Council hearings to provide input in person. Please see
below for more information. You can also provide input by phone or email. Please see below for
contact information.

When and where are the hearings?

The meeting schedule is as follows:

•  Tuesday, January 21, 2020 at 5:30 pm

•  Tuesday, February 4, 2020 at 5:30 pm

•  Tuesday, March 3, 2020 at 5:30 pm

•  Tuesday, March 17, 2020 at 5:30 pm

The meetings will be held at the City Council chambers of the City of Oroville at 1735 Montgomery

St., Oroville, CA 95965.

How are the districts drawn?

Generally, the following criteria are used to draw the council districts:

•  Each district should contain nearly the same number of people;

•  Boundaries shall be drawn in a manner that complies with the United States
Constitution and the Federal Voting Rights Act;

•  Council districts shall consist of contiguous territory in as compact form as

practicable;

•  Districts shall follow visible features and boundaries when possible;

•  Council districts shall respect communities of interest as much as practicable.

Communities of Interest generally refers to a contiguous population which shares

common social and economic interests that should be included within a single district

for purposes of fair and effective representation;



In summary, this means the following:

• We will use a mapping program to construct districts after public input has been

received.

•  Census data will be used to find out how many people live in each part of the city

and ensure that each district contains roughly the same number of people.

•  Census geography will be used to ensure that the districts are compact and

contiguous.

• We will collect and utilize Community of Interest data from the residents of Oroville

to use in the building of districts.

• We will not use political party affiliation for information in the drawing of districts.

How many people should be In each district?

As counted by the 2010 Census, the City of Oroville had a total population of 18,725. Because the

decennial census is the only survey that counts everyone, we have to use those data to draw

districts. There will be 6 council districts. To figure out the 'ideal population' for each council

district, take the total population (18,725) and divide it by the number of districts, which equals
~3,121 persons for a set of 6 districts.

Do we use the number of voters to draw districts?

Districts are drawn using the total population as counted by the last census. Everyone who was
counted, irrespective of age or other demographics has to be assigned to a district. Districts are
not equalized using voters, registered voters or citizens.

What happens at the public hearings?

Hearings are designed to be as accessible and transparent as possible. Our districting consulting
team will begin with a presentation to give an overview of the process and the criteria. The
hearings will then provide an opportunity to allow for formal public input to be presented by
attendees. The consultants will be able to show the area that the input focuses on using mapping
software and a projector. The consultants will use the public input in constructing the draft maps.



What information do you need from me?

One of the criteria to draw maps is called "Communities of Interest" or CGI. Because there are

no datasets available for Communities of Interest, we appreciate your help to define them for

the City of Oroville. A CGI is a group of people in a defined geographic location that share a

common bond or interest. A Community of Interest is commonly defined as "a contiguous

population which shares common social and economic interests that should be included within

a single district for purposes of fair and effective representation." Please tell us what defines your

Community of Interest, where it is located and why it should stay together.

We have developed a handout that explains this in detail and provided a form to fill out along
with a document that explains how to use free online software to make a map.

Why should I get involved in the districting process?

We would like to hear from you so we can make informed decisions about where to draw district

lines. Specifically, we need information about your neighborhoods and communities of interests.

You are the expert who knows your communities and neighborhoods! If we know the geographic

locations of the Communities of Interest in Groville, we can consider them when drawing lines

and we won't inadvertently split them! Keeping communities together in the same district can

help to get more responsive representation.

How can I stay informed?

If you cannot join us at a meeting, you can remain updated by visiting the City's website at:
http://www.cityoforoville.org/

How do i get answers to additional questions?

If you have more questions, we are available to answer them I

•  You can attend the City Council hearings

•  You can send mail to the City Clerk's office:

> City Clerk, City of Groville, 1735 Montgomery Street, Groville, CA 95965

•  You can email your question to: districting@CitvofOroville.org

•  Gr call us: 530-538-2535



What is the timeline?

The districting process timeline is prescribed by the California Election Code. Section 10010(b)

requires that 2 hearings, no more than 30 days apart, are held prior to the development of a draft

map. Two additional hearings, no more than 45 days apart, are required after a proposed map

has been drawn.

•  Tuesday, January 21, 2020 at 5:30 pm

•  Tuesday, February 4, 2020 at 5:30 pm

•  Tuesday, March 3, 2020 at 5:30 pm

•  Tuesday, March 17, 2020 at 5:30 pm

At a 5^*^ hearing, which will be scheduled soon, the City Council can adopt the new district lines.



Describe your Community of Interest (COI) below:
Please be sure to include what makes it a Community of Interest (e.g. shared culture, common

neighborhood projects, etc.) where it is located (i.e. streets, creeks, freeways, or other places in

the city make up the exterior boundaries of your COI) and why it should be kept together (e.g.

easier to work with 1 council member). A COI can be any size - large or small - and does not

need to be the same size as a district. Often multiple COIs are included in one district!

What is the mutual interest?

Where is it located? Please be as specific as possible - what streets, highways, rivers, etc., make

up the boundaries of your COI?

Why should it be kept together?

Date: Name (optional):.

Please email this completed form (or the information from this form) as soon as possible to:

districtingOCitvofOroville.org. or mail it to City Clerk, City of Oroville, 1735 Montgomery Street,

Oroville, CA 95965, or drop it off at any districting meeting/hearing. Please submit your COI by

February 14, 2020, to be considered for the draft map. Thank you for participating! This process

would not be possible without your knowledge of your community!



Understanding the term "Communities of Interest"

Your input is needed to shape Oroville's Council Districts!

What Is a Community of Interest (COD?

A COi is a group of people in a defined geographic location that share a common bond or interest.
The definition is broad, leaving communities a lot of discretion in determining which issues are

important to them. The City of Oroville's districting criteria define Community of Interest as ''a

contiguous population which shares common social and economic interests that should be
included within a single district for purposes of fair and effective representation."

Communities of Interest are best documented through oral or written input from individuals or
groups with first-hand knowledge of them. Census and other outside data can lend support, but
cannot replace personal knowledge of the community. That's why we want to hear your feedback
on your community; you know it best!

The 3 Steps to document vour COI:

Please answer the following questions:

1. What is the nature of the bond or common interest of vour communitv?

Please describe what the common interests of your community are, and why or how they are

important. For example:

•  If your Community of Interest is built around a community center, then your testimony
should include the name and location of the center and describe the community's

involvement in it or why it is important. You might say that the surrounding community

accesses a variety of educational and recreational opportunities for children, adults and

senior citizens at the center and that neighborhood meetings are held there.

• You may also identify a Community of Interest based on a shared culture or heritage of
residents in a specific area. Please indicate why it is a common bond, e.g. "because of our
shared history and language, we work together on cultural projects and this creates a
sense of unity and understanding."



2. Where is your community located?

Tell us where the exterior boundaries of your COI are so we can locate it on a map. For example,
write down landmarks, streets, bodies of water, or railroad tracks that indicate the location of
the outside border of the community.

A map showing the location of the COI, along with oral or written testimony identifying the
location, can be extremely helpful to locate the COI. A map can be created using free online
programs such as Google Maps.

3. Why is it beneficial for vour community to be kept together in a district?

When you talk about your Community of Interest, consider explaining why it should be kept
together in a district and why splitting it would be problematic. For example:

•  A Community of Interest working on creating economic opportunities might note that
redevelopment and job creation activities are more effective when residents in the
respective area can work together with one, rather than multiple representatives.

• A small COI that is working to receive government support may find that it has lesser
chances of receiving funding if split into two.

YouVe documented vour COI; now what?

Please get the information about your Community to us in one of the following ways:

• Attend one of the community meetings or city council hearings! You can provide the
information to the City's consultants in person either verbally or by dropping off the
information.

•  Email the information to: districting(5)CitvofOroville.org

• Mail it to: City Clerk,_City of Oroville, 1735 Montgomery Street, Oroville, CA 95965

Please submit your COI by February 14, 2020, so we can consider all Communities when creating
a draft of the districts. Thank you for participating in this important project!



How to Create a Community of Interest fCOl) Map Using Google Maps

1. Open Google My Maps, https://www.google.eom/maps/d/. Sign In to Google My
Maps using the sign-in button in the top right corner of the map.

2. Click "Create a new map" or if you are editing an existing map, click "Open a map."

3. You may give your map a title and a description by clicking in the box where it

says, "Untitled map." Click the "Save" button.

4. Start mapping by entering an address or intersection into the search box and

zooming in your area of interest so that the entire area is visible on your monitor.

5. Select the "Draw a line" tool, ^ located at the top of the map below the
search bar and select "Add line or shape."

6. Draw a border around your community by clicking and dropping points around the
border.

7. To finish the border, click on your starting point. You will end up with a grey shape
showing the area you have selected. Google My Maps will name it "Polygon 1" by

default. Note: if you don't click on the first point and close the "polygon" Google

My Maps will name it "Line 1" rather than "Polygon 1."

8. You may edit the area by deleting or moving the polygon or individual points. Use

the "Select items" tool S r and right click on the area to reactivate the
polygon's points for editing. If you accidentally delete or move a point, or delete
or move the polygon you can use "Ctrl Z" to restore it.

9. To move a point, click on it with the "Select items" tool to select it and then drag

it to its new location. Note: a selected point will change from white to the color of

your polygon area.

10. To delete a single point, click on it with the "Select items" tool to select it, then

right click and select "Delete point." To delete the entire polygon right click on

the polygon area with the "Select items" tool and click "Delete."

r"®11. You may use the "Add marker" vly tool to add place marks to your map in order
to indicate locations of significance as well as, community assets in your COI. Click
on the "Add marker" and then click the location on the map you want to mark.



*

12. Once finished; click the map menu button in the left panel ♦ . Select; "Export
to KML" then select the layer you created for your CGI or if you have multiple

points and areas on your map that you wish for the commission to see select;

"Entire Map;" click "Download;" name the KML file and save it. Note: You can

view your KML outside of Google My Maps in the free version of Google Earth.

13. Email your KML file to dlstricting@CityofOrovllle.org or print and submit it in

person at any community meeting. Please submit your CO! as soon as possible or

before February 14; 2020; so we can consider all GDIs when creating the drafts of
the districts. If your CGI has a name; please include it as well as the names of

streets; names of places; locations; and any landmarks that form the boundaries

within the CGI that are important to you. Consider including your contact
information so we can reach out to you if we have questions. THANK YGU PGR

YGUR PARTICIPATIGNI


	01.21.2020 Agenda Packet
	Top
	1. Closed Session - Assistant City Administrator
	2. Closed Session - staff - Assistant city Administrator
	3. Closed Session - potential litigation
	4. Closed Session Item 1 - Labor Negotiations
	1. Minutes for January 7, 2020
	01.07.2020 Minutes

	2. Birdcage Extension Request
	S - Arts Nofa Birdcage Extension Request
	R - Grant Agreement - Birdcage
	Amendment 3274-2 Birdcage
	A-3274-2 between the City of Oroville and the Birdcage Theatre

	3. FEE WAIVER FOR FLAG POLE AND SHADE STRUCTURE FOR THE VETERANS MEMORIAL FOR ALL OF BUTTE COUNTY
	Veterans Memorial Fee Waiver

	4. ESTABLISH BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION FOR SB2 PLANNING GRANT TO PROMOTE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT IN OROVILLE
	SB2 Budget and appropriation 1-21-20 Council Staff Report
	19-PGP-13408 Pending SB2 agreement

	5. AMENDMENT OF ORIGINAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION
	State Parks Patrols
	State Parks Resolution
	Standard Agreement Amendment

	6. Stumpex Stump Grinder
	ITEM-Staff-94362ed5ab204b8b851994ada6fc216c (3) (1)
	0318 Stumpex

	7. By-District Public Hearing #1
	Staff Report- Public Hearing re district elections (002)

	8. SECOND READING OF A DRAFT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE AMENDING SECTIONS 17.04.060 AND 5.28.010 AND ADDING SECTIONS 5.28.095, 5.28.130 AND 5.28.140 OF THE OROVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING PROHIBITING THE SALE OF FLAVORED TOBACCO
	COUNCIL STAFF REPORT Jan 21 2020 re flavored tobacco
	COUNCIL STAFF REPORT Jan 7 2020 re flavored tobacco
	proposed code changes to ban flavored tobacco with revisions

	9. FISCAL YEAR UPDATE
	Council Update report

	i. resignation letter - Scott - Parks Commission
	Letter of Resignation - Scott Lawrence - Parks Commission

	ii. Letters - FERC
	Letters - FERC 01.15.2020

	iii. Butte County Public Hearing Notice
	Letter - Butte County Public Hearing - 01.15.2020

	Bottom
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Handouts 1.21.2020
	Blank Page

